
 
 

 
 

TAMWORTH LOCAL PARKING COMMITTEE 

 
 
10 July 2013 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 
A meeting of the Tamworth Local Parking Committee will be held in Committee 
Room 1 Marmion House, Lichfield Street, Tamworth on Wednesday, 17th July, 
2013 at 6.00 pm. Members of the Committee are requested to attend. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
1 Appointment of Chair  

2 Appointment of Vice-Chair  

3 Apologies  

4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4) 

5 Declarations of Interest  

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-pecuniary) 
in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting. 
 
When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in respect of 
which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of such interest.  
Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary 
interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.   
 
 

6 Staffordshire Joint Parking Board  

 To discuss progress around the review of the Civil Parking Enforcement process 
in Staffordshire. 
 
Meeting on 9 July 2013 – All Committee Members are asked to note that all 
papers and minutes will be available to view on Staffordshire County Councils 
Website including the annual report of Tamworth Borough Council 
 
http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=204&MId=4378
&Ver=4 
 
 

7 Annual Progress Report for Civil Parking Enforcement in Tamworth 1 April 
2012 - 31 March 2013 (Pages 5 - 8) 

 To receive the report of the District Nominated Officer 
 

8 Progress Report for Civil Parking Enforcement in Tamworth 1 April 2013 - 
30 June 2013 (Pages 9 - 14) 

 To receive an update for the first quarter 2013/14 from the District Nominated 
Officer 
 

9 Update on the Residents Parking Zone - West Street/Albion Street Area  

 Verbal update from the Community Highway Liaison Manager (East Staffordshire, 
Lichfield and Tamworth) 
 

10 Traffic Regulation Orders Priority Lists and Requests Received (Pages 15 - 
22) 

 Report of the Community Highway Liaison Manager (East Staffordshire, Lichfield 
and Tamworth) 
 

• To discuss the progress of previously agreed priority order for TROs and to 
update the priority list for Tamworth Borough Council to 2016/17 (previous 
priority list attached) 

• Project and previously planned work for information   
 
 
 



11 Saxon Close, Wilnecote Parking Issues  

 Verbal update from the Community Highway Liaison Manager on progress of the 
investigation of parking issues at Saxon Close (as agreed at the meeting on 20th 
March 2013) 
 

 
 
 
People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709264 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk  
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting.  We can then endeavour to ensure that any 
particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To Councillors: S Claymore, R Pritchard, P Standen, M Thurgood and County 
Councillors C Cooke, M Greatorex and B Jenkins 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1  
 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

TAMWORTH LOCAL PARKING 

COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 20th MARCH 2013 

 
 

 
PRESENT: County Councillor Michael Oates (Chair), Councillors S Claymore, 

P Standen and M Thurgood 

 

 
The following officers were present: Andrew Barratt (Director - Assets and 
Environment), Joanne Sands (Neighbourhood Services Manager) and Larry 
Phillips (Car Parks & CCTV Supervisor) 
 
 
 

30 APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received form Councillor R Pritchard. 
 

31 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The minutes were signed as a true copy. 
 

32 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no Declarations of Interest. 
 

33 UPDATE ON COUNTY CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT REVIEW  

 
Mr Barratt outlined the purpose of the review of CPE in Staffordshire for 
feedback from the Committee. 
  
CPE is lead by Staffordshire County Council with the Districts as the delivery 
bodies. 
 
The review will cover:- 
Contractual arrangements 
Governance 
Objectives – has the Clear Streets brand initiative been strong and achieved 
the outcomes required. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



Tamworth Local Parking 
Committee 

20 March 2013 

 

 

2 
 

The review will also attempt to answer fundamental questions about CPE: 
Enforcement in its widest sense – is it consistent and robust? 
Does it work for local communities – to cover where it works and where it 
doesn’t (eg around schools)? 
Best practice customer experience 
Operational management – in-house v contractor 
Cost and efficiency of the service – at the present time the service does not 
meet objectives of self sustainability and can this ever be done? 

 
Mr Barratt asked for feedback on three specific areas:- 

• Benefits – has anything changed? 

• What could be done better? 

• What are we prepared to spend as a Council bearing in mind ongoing 
deficits 

 
Councillor Oates asked if the Committee thought parking was any worse or better.  
A general discussion took place. 
 
He indicated that in his opinion parking was no better around schools, but 
statistics indicated that parking was better in areas which could be enforced and 
that there was a positive impact on traffic flow.  
 
Although there is concern about the viability, the objective of CPE was to 
encourage people to park properly and that was happening. 
 
Mr Rayson explained that in all areas the effectiveness of CPE tended to reach 
levels required and had peaks and troughs.  In some areas where CPE is in 
surplus, on street charging had been introduced (East Staffs). 
 
He reported that Traffic Regulation Order requests had reduced leading County to 
the view that levels of understanding is increasing and the public are parking 
more responsibly. 
 
Councillor Claymore commented that it was understood that funding would be 
depreciating as less people parked in contravention, but feels that people will still 
complain.  There may not be an alternative, could we ever break even and what 
would be the implication of reducing deployment. 
 
Mr Barratt informed the Committee that Tamworth Borough Council may be at a 
‘tipping point’ – enforcement hours have reduced, but it may not be that levels of 
PCNs would be sufficient to fund a break even or surplus service. 
 
Economic conditions have indicated less vehicles on the road both on and off 
street.   
 
Councillor Thurgood asked if efficiencies could be made by the officers doing 
other things whilst patrolling eg litter/dog fouling enforcement. 
 

Page 2



Tamworth Local Parking 
Committee 

20 March 2013 

 

 

3 
 

Mr Barratt told the Committee that DfT guidance suggested that officer’s primary 
reason should be for on-street enforcement and in places where duties had 
combined reduces effectiveness further, primarily due to training and cost. 
 
Mr Rayson explained that in East Staffs there was a rolling crew to target schools, 
which Mrs Sands also said was already present in Tamworth with beat patterns 
and the Ziggy and Zaggy campaigns. 
 
The Staffordshire County Council Road Safety Team also work with school 
children and there may be scope to do other work in Tamworth to target repeat 
offenders. 
 
Councillor Claymore highlighted the concern that if there was no enforcement at 
all then people would revert to old habits. Whilst there is a prospect of being 
caught, this is a deterrent.  
 
Councillor Oates agreed, but said that financially officers could not be every 
where everyday. 
 
Councillor Standen suggested that it is ideal for an enforcement presence around 
schools. 
 
Mrs Sands stated that it is too early to assess the effect of education and 
information through use of the toolkit.   It was agreed that this would be re-sent 
and circulated to other Districts. 
 

34 UPDATE ON RESIDENTS PARKING ZONE  

 
Mr Rayson reported that 153 letters have been circulated to the properties in the 
affected streets and 64 properties have expressed an interest in joining a 
residents’ scheme. 
 
The layout of the zone indicates that 127 parking spaces are available and to 
date from the interests expressed, 97 permits would be requested. 
 
Mr Rayson reported that the £50 per permit fee, which covers administration, 
monitoring and increased enforcement levels does not include the set-up costs of 
the scheme for which the County does not have funding. 
 
The cost of the scheme is £8,900 which would mean an initial charge per property 
interested of £137.  Mr Rayson indicated that in previous experience this may 
actually deter people from joining and therefore may mean that the scheme 
cannot go ahead. 
 
He requested a decision from the Committee to confirm that the County should 
still continue to move the scheme forward, potentially using the Divisional 
Councillor’s Highway budget. 
 
At present the scheme may be unviable if residents do not wish to pay the set up 
costs or others drop out due to the cost. 

Page 3



Tamworth Local Parking 
Committee 

20 March 2013 

 

 

4 
 

 
Councillor Thurgood stated that she did not feel that Council money should pay 
for implementation of a scheme for so few residents and needed to find out how 
many vehicles each property had and percentage of car owners. 

 
Councillor Claymore requested that the County goes back to residents to explain 
the process. 
 
Mr Rayson stated that is was not possible to underwrite the joining fee as this had 
to be met at implementation. 
 
Discussion took place around the County policy for RPZ and that the next phase 
of implementation was required to let residents know that all in agreement at 
present would have a space. 
 
Councillor Thurgood asked if the funding etc for RPZ’s could be included in the 
CPE review and for it to be taken to the next Joint Parking Board. 
 
It was agreed that Mr Rayson send out a letter to explain to residents the current 
situation and that the scheme should go to the next stage. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Claymore and seconded by Councillor Standen 
 

35 TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS UPDATE  

 
Mr Rayson updated the Committee on TROs to date:- 
 

• Summerfield Close will not be taken forward 

• Ventura Park – a holistic view will be taken of the requests when the 
impact of the new exit has been assessed. 

• Magnus, Wilnecote – not particular problems shown  

• Highcliffe Road – TRO in place 

• Chestnut Avenue, Watling Street, Beauchamp Road – areas to be 
assessed 

• Saxon Close – Councillor Standen expressed some concern that previous 
requests to investigate parking issues at this location had not been 
reported back from Staffordshire County Council. The issues in this area 
will be subject to further review and a report to the next Committee due to 
residents concerns which include general parking issues, school start and 
finish time and concerns with the TROs in place. 

 
Mr Rayson will take this forward and a meeting is to be arranged with the 
Headteacher at Wilnecote Junior School/Ward Councillor to discuss issues to 
form a joint agency response. 
 

  

 Chair  
 

Page 4



TAMWORTH LOCAL PARKING COMMITTEE 
 

17TH JULY 2013 
 

REPORT OF THE DISTRICT NOMINATED OFFICER FOR TAMWORTH 
BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT 

PROGRESS AND PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 1ST APRIL 
2012 TO 31ST MARCH 2013 

 
 
1 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To provide an update on the progress of Civil Parking Enforcement in 
Tamworth Borough since 31st March 2013 
 
2 Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the contents of the report be endorsed 
 
3 Key Issues 
 
3.1  
The total number of on street PCN’s issued up to the 31st March 2013 was 
5444, split as follows 
 
On Street Issued – 1917 (35% of issuance) 
Off Street Issued - 3527 (65% of issuance) 
 
The total PCN issue rate to 31st March is 81% of overall budgeted predictions 
(both on and off street combined) resulting in further loss of income to the 
service.  This has indicated a drop in contractual performance since previous 
report which is currently being managed. 
 
The on street enforcement was 64% average of annual deployed hours, with 
36% off street. Our contractor has achieved 90% of forecast annual 
deployment hours, which has indicated a further drop deployed hours during 
the year when compared with 2011/12. 
 
Although a reduction in deployed hours has reduced expenditure to the 
contract, a further 10.5% overall reduction in the PCN issuance at 31st March 
2013 has resulted in a further reduction in predicted income, which has further 
affected the predicted deficit at year end.  
 
For the first time issuance to off street locations has not achieved forecast 
levels. 
 
Cancellation rates are still within accepted parameters with CEO errors 
accounting for only 1% of cancellations. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



 
 
4 Relationship to Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1 County Indicators - Cleaner Greener, Safer Communities – Effective 
enforcement against parking contraventions contributes to safer parking and 
therefore safer streets. 
 
4.2 Local indicators - To create and sustain a thriving local economy and 
make Tamworth a more aspirational and competitive place to do business. 
To achieve this, we will: 
a) Raise the aspiration and attainment levels of young people 
b) Create opportunities for business growth through developing and using 
skills and talent 
c) Promote private sector growth and create quality employment locally 
d) Brand and market “Tamworth” as a great place to “live life to the full” 
e) Create the physical and technological infrastructure necessary to support 
the achievement of this primary outcome. 
 
 
5 Background 
 
Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

5.1 The table below provides information relating to Penalty Charge Notices 
(PCN) that have been issued for both on and off street contraventions for 1st 

April 2012 until 31st March 2013. The data was taken as at the 15th April  
2013 
 

Deployed 
Hours 
 

Revised 
Model 

Actual Variance 
 

 

On-Street 4200 3852 -8%  

Off Street 2808 2180 -22%  

PCN Issue Projected Actual Variance 
 

 

On-Street 2602 1917 -26% 
 

 

Off-Street 3902 3527 -10% 
 

 

 Projected 
2012/13 

Actual 
2012/13 

  

Income 
received 
 

 
£172600 

 
£147426 

  

  Actual   

Cancellations  16%   

Of which are 
CEO Error 

 <1% 
 

  

 

Page 6



5.2. The actual income figure noted above is 15% below the predicted outturn 
parameters for 2012/13 reflected in an overall 10% downturn in PCN 
issuance, however this is balanced in part by reduced deployment 
expenditure which is below anticipated. 
 
5.2 Of the cancellations noted in the table above the below table gives a 
breakdown by the most common category of cancellation. This information is 
being used to inform proactive management of the enforcement contract. 
 
5.3 The most significant rate of cancellations (33%) is Blue badge 
cancellations. Motorists who have provided evidence of valid P&D tickets are 
32% of cancellations.  
 

Reason Number of tickets 
 

Disabled badge – face down 119 Total 
276 Disabled badge – not on display first time 44 

Disabled clock not on display 113 

P&D Ticket provided – first contravention 69 Total  
271 P & D ticket face down 202 

PA Error – issued incorrectly 54 

Permit provided – first contravention 55 

 
6 Financial Implications 
 
6.1 The actual income to the CPE accounts at the end of 2012/13 is 15% 
below the predicted outturn for 2012/13.   
 
6.2 Expenditure to the service is 2% below the predicted outturn due to the 
contractor’s deployment issues, however this was increased during the last 
quarter of 2012/13. The impact upon enforcement volume with further 
reduced enforcement will be assessed moving forward. 
 
6.3 Some increases to expenditure have occurred due to electricity and rental 
recharges. 
 
6.3 The actual gross income to the account for the period 1st April 2012 to 31st 
March 2013 £147426. 
 
6.4 The declared operating deficit to the service for 2012/13 is £43000 which 
is £14000 (48%) more than the previous predicted deficit of £29000 and this 
will be reported to the Staffordshire Joint Parking Board. 
 
6.5 All financial and statistical figures were taken as at 15th April 2013. 
 
7 Risk Management Issues 
 
7.1 Reliance being placed upon a predicted outturn that is based upon 
estimated levels of income. 

Page 7



 
7.2 Expenditure and income is constantly reviewed to reduce income incurred 
to reduce the risk of further financial deficit. 
 
7.3 CPE review is ongoing to review operations and decide the future of the 
service. 
 
8 Equality Issues 
 
8.1 None 
 
This report has been produced having considered the following additional 
issues Strategic Plan Implications, Sustainability Issues, Climate Change, 
Human Rights, Issues, Crime and Community Safety Issues, Data Protection 
Act Implications, Legal Implications, Human Resource Implications 
 
 
 
 

Previous Consideration  
 
nil 

 
Background Papers 
 
nil 
 

Page 8



TAMWORTH LOCAL PARKING COMMITTEE 
 

17 JULY 2013 
 

REPORT OF THE DISTRICT NOMINATED OFFICER FOR TAMWORTH 
BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT 

PROGRESS AND PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 1ST APRIL 
2013 TO 30TH JUNE 2013 

 
 
1 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To provide an update on the progress of Civil Parking Enforcement in 
Tamworth Borough for the 1st April 2013 – 30th June 2013 
 
2 Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
3 Key Issues 
 
3.1 The deployed enforcement hours remain at a maximum of 584 per month 
(in line with 2012/13). This continues to be monitored and managed closely 
with the contractor due to the further deficit to the service in 2012/13, 
contractual rate increase and during the County review of CPE. 
 
Our contractor has achieved 95% of the deployment model overall, exceeding 
the partnership KPI of 91%.  In the first quarter of 2013 the total deployed 
hours to the service was 1663.  
 
The on street deployment figure was 62% (1008 hours) of current deployed 
hours. Off street deployment was 38% (618 hours).  
 
The PCN projection for Tamworth remain at 242 per month on street and 300 
per month off street and this continues to be the basis upon which the 
predicted budget position was forecast. 
 
The split between off street and on street continues to be dominated by off 
street PCN’s which represent 68% of those issued.  
 
The total number of PCN’s issued up to the 30th June 2013 was 1605 (1096 
Off Street and 509 On Street). This PCN issue rate represents a 98.7% 
achievement of profiled predictions against the financial model and represents 
an 24% increase when compared to the first quarter of 2012 which is a 
contractual improvement. 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 9



3.2 The PCN cancellation rate for the is quarter is within expected KPIs with 
only 1% of cancellations due to CEO error.  Overall 16% of PCNs issued were 
cancelled. 
 
3.3 Expenditure to the service is predicted to increase compared to previous 
years with an agreed CPI increase in fees payable to our contractor. 
 
3.4 All partners in the South Staffordshire CPE contract arrangement will be 
required to review the existing contract with APCOA during the next quarter.   
The contract expires on March 31st 2014 with provision for extension for up to 
2 years.  Due to the ongoing review of CPE in Staffordshire, negotiations have 
commenced to provide for appropriate extension to the contract. 
 
 
 
4 Relationship to Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1 To create and sustain a thriving local economy and make Tamworth a 
more aspirational and competitive place to do business. 
To achieve this, we will: 
a) Raise the aspiration and attainment levels of young people 
b) Create opportunities for business growth through developing and using 
skills and talent 
c) Promote private sector growth and create quality employment locally 
d) Brand and market “Tamworth” as a great place to “live life to the full” 
e) Create the physical and technological infrastructure necessary to support 
the achievement of this primary outcome. 
 
 
5 Background 
 
Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

5.1 The table below provides information relating to Penalty Charge Notices 
(PCN) that have been issued for both on and off street contraventions for 1st 

April 2011 until 31st March 2012. The data was taken as at the 4th July 2013 
 

Deployed 
Hours 
 

Revised 
Model 

Actual Variance 
 

 

On-Street 1050 1008 -4%  

Off Street 702 618 -12% 
 

 

PCN Issue Projected Actual Variance 
 

 

On-Street 726 509 -30% 
 

 

Off-Street 900 1096 +18% 
 

 

 Projected Actual Outstanding  

Page 10



Balance 
(PCNs issued 
not yet paid) 
 

Income 
received 
 

£43150(as 
per 2013/14 
predicted) 

£37680.68 
(to 30th 
June2013) 

£20170  
(Stoke on Trent 
back office as at 
4
th
 July 2013) 

 
 

 

  Actual 
 

  

Cancellations  16% 
 

  

Of which are 
CEO Error 
 

 1% 
 

  

 
5.2 The projected income figure noted above is the forecast outturn for 
2013/14 
 
5.3 The actual income figure of £37680.68 is the amount received as at 30th 
June 2013 and the outstanding balance refers to PCNs issued during the first 
quarter for which any payment has not been received.   
 
5.4 The income figure plus the outstanding amounts show some 
improvements on the previous year; however, the actual income remains 
lower than the predicted rate and represents 13% under recovery against 
predictions (excluding outstanding income) in the first quarter. 
 
5.3 Of the cancellations noted in the table above the below table gives a 
breakdown by the most common category of cancellation. This information is 
being used to inform proactive management of the enforcement contract. 
 
5.4 The most significant rate of cancellations (32%) is that of motorists who 
have provided evidence of payment after leaving P&D tickets face down, with 
that of PCNs issued for the incorrect or failure to display a blue badge permit 
or clock also remaining significant 
 

Reason Number of tickets 
 

Disabled badge – face down 17 Total 
42 Disabled badge – not on display first time 20 

Disabled clock not on display 5 

P & D ticket face down 82 

PA Error – issued incorrectly 18 

Permit provided – first contravention 13 

P&D Ticket provided – first contravention 34 

 
 

Page 11



6 Financial Implications 
 
6.1 The income to the service as at 30th June is 13% below that as forecast 
despite contractual improvements and improved PCN performance. 
 
6.2 Annual expenditure to the service is predicted to be £174000  at 1st April 
2014. To date it is as expected to achieve this.  This will continue to be 
monitored closely. 
 
6.3 The current draft forecast deficit to the service at year end 2013/14 is 
£27200.  A 13% reduction in forecast income, based on first quarter prediction 
may increase this to £50000 and this will continue to be reported and work 
continued with our contractor. 
 
6.3 All financial and statistical figures were taken as at 4th July 2013 
 
7 Risk Management Issues 
 
7.1 Reliance being placed upon a predicted outturn that is based upon 
estimated levels of income. 
 
7.2 Expenditure and income requires further review with all partners to reduce 
income incurred to reduce the risk of further financial deficit. 
 
7.3 Current predictions do not suggest that the Tamworth CPE budgets will 
result in surplus for the foreseeable future. 
 
7.4 A further reduction in deployment expenditure may further decrease 
income to the service resulting in greater deficit. 
 
7.5 Contract extension negotiation may have adverse affect on the operation 
of CPE should they be unsuccessful 
 
7.6 The ongoing CPE operational review may affect the ability of Tamworth 
Borough Council to continue with enforcement in the longer term. 
 
8 Equality Issues 
 
8.1 None 
 
This report has been produced having considered the following additional 
issues Strategic Plan Implications, Sustainability Issues, Climate Change, 
Human Rights, Issues, Crime and Community Safety Issues, Data Protection 
Act Implications, Legal Implications, Human Resource Implications 
 
 
Previous Consideration  
 
Nil 
 

Page 12



Background Papers 
 
Nil 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Annual Progress Report for Civil Parking Enforcement in Tamworth 1 April 2012 - 31 March 2013
	8 Progress Report for Civil Parking Enforcement in Tamworth 1 April 2013 - 30 June 2013
	10 Traffic Regulation Orders Priority Lists and Requests Received

